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A Note About the Author

Alexandre Dumas was
born on 24th July 1802, in
Villers-Cotteréts, in northern
France. His father was an
important soldier — a general
in Napoleon'’s army. Dumas’
mother was the daughter of
an innkeeper.

In 1823, Dumas went to

Paris. He wanted to become a lawyer. But he worked in

the house of a rich man. Dumas started to write
historical plays and novels. They were exciting and
they were successtul. Dumas became a famous man. He
was one of the most popular French writers of the
nineteenth century. He liked good food, fine wines and
beautiful women. Dumas travelled to many countries
and he spent a lot of money.

Alexandre Dumas wrote three stories about some
French soldiers in the seventeenth century. These
stories ate: The Three Musketeers (1844 ), Twenty Years
After (1845), and The Viscount of Bragelonne
(1844-1850). Other famous stories are: The Count of
Monte Cristo (1844—1845) and The Black Tulip (1850).
The Man in the Iron Mask is part of the story, The
Viscount of Bragelonne.

Dumas died on 5th December 1870 at Puys, near

Dieppe, in northern France. He was 68 years old.



A Note About This Story

Time: 1661. Place: France.

In 1643, Louis XIV became the King of France. But
he was only five years old. Queen Anne, Louis’ mother,
ruled for him until 1661. After that, Louis began to

rule France himself. Nicolas Fouquet was Louis’ Chief

Minister of Finance. Jean-Baptiste Colbert was also an
important adviser. The two men hated each other.
Colbert and King Louis made France a rich and power-
ful country. Louis ruled France for 27 years. He spent a
ereat amount of money and he fought many wars.

In 1661, Louis saw Fouquet's house near Vaux.
Then the king wanted a fine house of his own. He
built a beautiful palace at Versailles. The work took
morte than 20 years.

This story is about four friends — D’Artagnan,
Aramis, Porthos and Athos. They first met in 1625,
They were soldiers in the King’s Musketeers, ‘All for
one, and one for all!’ — that was their promise to each
other. For three years, they had many adventures
together. Then Athos, Porthos and Aramis left the
musketeers. After that, Athos lived in a house near
Blois. Porthos married a rich lady and he lived in Paris.
Aramis became a priest, and later he became the
Bishop of Vannes. D'Artagnan became the captain of
the King's Musketeers. For many years, the four friends
did not meet each other often. But they did have two

more adventures together. Their last adventure was

The Man in the Iron Mask ...
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The year was 1661. It was a warm summer night,

Aramis, the Bishop of Vannes, arrived at the terrible
Bastille prison, in Paris. A guard met him at the gate.

‘Take me to Monsieur Baisemeaux,’ said Aramis.

A few minutes later, the Bishop was talking to the
governor of the prison. He gave Monsieur Baisemeaux
a paper and he pointed to a name on it.

‘1 want to see this prisoner,’ said Aramis.

The governor read the name on the paper.

‘Please follow me, Bishop,' he said.

After a few minutes, the two men arrived at the door
of a cell. The governor opened the door with a key.

‘1 must talk to the prisoner alone,’ the Bishop said.

Aramis went into the cell. The governor shut the
cell door, then he went away.

Aramis looked round the small room. He saw a
young man on a bed. He saw a small window, high in
the wall. He saw a chair, and a plate of food on a small

table. The prisoner had not eaten any of the food.



Aramis looked again at the young man.

‘What do you want!" asked the prisoner. Then he
looked closely at his visitor. The tall old man was a
bishop of the Catholic Church. He was wearing a long
purple cloak.

‘I've seen you before, Bishop,’ the young man said.

Aramis smiled. ‘T will tell you a secret,’ he said.

‘Sit down,’ the young man said. ‘I'm listening.’

Aramis sat on the chair. After a moment, he began
to speak. ‘Do you like the Bastille? he asked. ‘Or do
you want to be free?

‘What is “free”, Bishop? replied the prisoner.

‘A free man sees the flowers growing,’ said Aramis,
‘He sees the sun shining. He sees the light of the stars.
That is freedom!”

The young man thought for a moment. He pointed
to some flowers in a vase near his window.

‘Here are two roses from the governor’s garden,’ he
said. ‘Aren’t they beautiful?
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‘1 have light too," the prisoner said. ‘The sun wvisits
me every day. It comes through my small window. At
night, [ look at the stars. Am 1 free, Bishop?”

‘“Why are you here!” asked Aramis. “What was your
crime!’

‘There was no crime,’ said the young man. ‘But you
are going to tell me a secret. What is it?’

Aramis did not answer the young man’s question.

“You said, “I've seen you before.” And you were
right,’ the Bishop said. ‘You saw me once before. It was
in 1646 — about fifteen years ago. You were in your
home in the country. I was with a lady in a black dress.’

‘1 remember her!” said the prisoner. ‘After that, she
came again with another woman.’

“Yes,' said Aramis. ‘And that second woman visited
you every month.’

‘1 remember her visits well,” the young man said.
‘After my eighth year, | didn't have any other visitors.
[ lived in a house with a garden. There were high walls
round the garden. I never went outside those walls.
Two people took care of me — a nurse and my teacher.
My teacher was a very kind man. He told me about my
parents. “Your mother and father are dead,” he said.
Was that true, Bishop? Is my father dead?

“Yes,” Aramis said.

‘And my mother? the young man asked.

‘She is dead for you,” Aramis replied.

‘But she is alive for others? asked the young man.

Aramis waited for a moment. ‘Yes,” he said.



The Prisoner

“Young man, you have a powerful enemy,’ said Aramis.

“Yes. My enemy must be a very important person,’
said the prisoner. ‘[ was only a boy, but somebody sent
me here. [ was fifteen —'

‘Did this happen eight years ago!" asked Aramis.
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‘Yes, it was nearly eight years ago,’ the young man
replied. ‘One day, | was in my room at home. My
enly | heard

teacher was in his room, above mine. Sudd

him running down the stairs. He ran into the garden
and he called to my nurse. She went into the garden
too. The two of them went to the water well. The well
was under the windows of my teacher’s room.’

‘My teacher pointed to the well,’ the young man
said. ‘He was worried. “I've lost the letter from the
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Queen!” he told the nurse. “The wind blew it into the
well!” My nurse tried to calm him. She told him, “It
doesn’t matter. The Queen comes here every month.
She always burns her letters then — she doesn't keep
them. You must write to her. You must tell her about
the accident.” The nurse wasn't worried.’

‘I tried to understand the nurse’s words,’ the young
man said. ‘And suddenly, | did understand them. A
lady came to the house every month. I didn’t know
her. But I thought, “That lady is the Queen!” [ was
very surprised!’

‘My teacher spoke to the nurse again,’ the young
man said. ‘He told her, “The Queen will not believe
me. She always worries about Philippe. Nobody knows
about him. Nobody must ever know about him. We
know that. But does the Queen trust us?” My teacher
put his hands over his face.’

‘Then, | was very surprised,’ the prisoner said. ‘“The
nurse and my teacher were talking about me, Bishop.
My name is Philippe!’

‘Then my teacher spoke again,” said Philippe. ‘He
said, “But you are right. I will write to the Queen
today.” Then they came back into the house.’

‘What happened next? asked Aramis.

‘Some soldiers came to the house,’” said Philippe.
‘They arrested me. They brought me to the Bastille.
never saw my teacher or the nurse again.’

‘The Queen’s soldiers killed them,’ said Aramis.
‘Now | have another question for you. Were there any
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mirrors in the house with the high walls?

‘Mirrors? said Philippe. “What are mirrors? I don’t
understand the word.’

‘A mirror is a piece of glass with shiny metal behind
it,” said Aramis. ‘You look at a mirror and you see your-
self in it.’

‘Then the answer is no,” said Philippe. ‘There were
no mirrors in that house.’

‘Ah!” said Aramis. ‘How much do you know about
the history of our country, Philippe?”

‘l know a little about the lives of the kings of
France,’ said Philippe. ‘That is all.’

‘Then listen to me,” said Aramis. ‘King Louis XIII
was the King of France from 1610 to 1643. For a long
time, the King and Queen wanted a son. And on the
5th September 1638, Queen Anne gave birth to a boy.’

The Bishop looked at the prisoner carefully.

The King named the baby boy Louis,” Aramis said.
‘He took the boy from the Queen’s room. He wanted to
show his son to the French people. But an hour later,
the Queen gave birth to a second son. The Queen’s
nurse ran to the King and showed the second baby to
him. The King was not happy about it.’

‘Why not, Bishop? asked Philippe.

‘In France, a king’s oldest son becomes the next
king. King Louis XIII was afraid. He asked himself,
“Which son is the oldest? Will my second son fight my
first son? Will the second boy want to be king?” King
Louis was very worried.’
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‘King Louis talked to the Queen’s nurse,’ Aramis
said. ‘The nurse took the second boy away from the
palace.’

‘After that, the boy lived secretly in a house in the
country, said Aramis. ‘The nurse went with him and
she looked after him. Later, he had a teacher.’
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“The people of France never knew anything about
this second son,’ the Bishop said. ‘Now Louis XIII is
dead. Louis XIV does not know about the second son.

nurse and the teacher knew about him too, but they
are dead.’
‘Here is a picture of our King,’ said Aramis. He gave

here is a mirror.”

Philippe looked at the picture, then he looked into
the mirror.

“The King will never release me from this prison,’
Philippe said quietly. ‘I will never be a free man.’

‘Which is the King? asked Aramis. ‘The man in the
picture, or the man in the mirror?’

‘The King is the man in the Louvre Palace,’ said
Philippe sadly. ‘He is not this man in the Bastille.’

‘But I can put you in the palace,’ said Aramis. ‘I can
make you the King. Then your brother will take your
place in prison. And that will be good for the people of
France. Your brother is a bad king. He spends money
on feasts and expensive clothes. He spends money on
houses, horses and women. But his people are poor and
hungry. The King does nothing about that.’

Aramis was silent for a moment. Then he spoke
again. ‘I will see you in this place only once more.’

‘When, Bishop? asked Philippe.

‘Soon,” Aramis replied. ‘Soon, I and my friends will
release you from this prison.’

14
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The Louvre, Paris

D’Artagnan was the captain of the King's Musketeers.
These men guarded the King. They went everywhere
with King Louis.

One morning, D’Artagnan met his friend Porthos at
the Louvre, the King’s palace in Paris. Porthos was
excited.

‘I'm going to travel to Vaux next week,
D’Artagnan,’ he said. ‘Monsieur Fouquet, the Chief
Minister of Finance, has a fine new house at Vaux. He
Is going to give a great feast for the King there. He has
invited me to the feast. Will you be there, my friend?”
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Yes," D'Artagnan replied. ‘I and my musketeers will
be there with the King.’

Half an hour later, D’Artagnan and Porthos met
another friend at the Louvre. [t was Aramis, the
Bishop of Vannes. D'Artagnan was surprised.

‘Aramis!’ he said. “Why are you at the palace?”

‘I wanted to talk to Monsieur Fouquet,” Aramis
replied. ‘But he is very busy today. He has invited me
to the feast at Vaux. I will talk to him there.’

Earlier that day, Aramis had spoken to Monsieur
Fouquet. The King's Chief Minister of Finance was not

a happy man.

‘My friend,’ said Aramis. “Why
are you sad? Everybody is

talking about your feast at
Vaux. You will make the
/ }‘ King very happy.’

| “Yes," said Fouquet. ‘The
feast will be wonderful. But
[ have spent all my money

on the house at Vaux. I must




have more money soon. You gave me a promise,
Aramis — a promise of millions of francs.’

‘And you will have them soon, my friend," replied
Aramis. ‘You'll have the money after the King's visit to
Vaux. But now, you must do something for me. | need a
written order from you. The order will release a prison-
er from the Bastille — a young man. His name is
Seldon. The King has sent him to prison for ten years.’

‘“What was his crime!" asked Fouquet.

‘He wrote some unkind words about the bishops of
France,’ said Aramis. ‘But we have forgiven him.’

‘There was no other crime!” Fouquet asked.

‘There was no other crime,” Aramis replied.

Fouquet went to his desk /,‘_..—.=_.=..____h\~ |

and he wrote the order on a _~

piece of paper. He gave it
to Aramis.
‘This will release
Seldon,’ Fouquet said.
The Bishop smiled.
‘Thank you, my friend,” \
he said. =3
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“You Will Be a Great King’

The bell of the Bastille’s clock rang nine times.
Baisemeaux, the prison governor, had a guest in his
room. His guest was the Bishop of Vannes. But Aramis
was not dressed in his bishop’s clothes. He was dressed
in the clothes of a soldier. He was wearing a sword.
The two men were drinking wine.

‘This is good wine, Baisemeaux!’ said Aramis.

“Yes!” said the governor. He drank his wine quickly.
Then he called to his servant.

‘Bring another bottle!" he shouted.

After an hour, they had drunk several more bottles.
The servant came back into the governor's room.

‘A messenger has arrived,’ the servant said. ‘He has
brought an order from Monsieur Fouquet.’

The servant gave Baisemeaux a paper. The governor
read it. Then he showed it to Aramis.

‘It’s an order about one of the prisoners,” he said. ‘I
have to release him. I'll do it tomorrow.’

‘My friend!” said Aramis. ‘Think of that unhappy
man. Release him tonight!’

“You want me to release him now? said Baisemeaux.
‘Very well, my friend. 1 will do it!”

He left the paper on the table and he went to the
door. He called some guards. Quickly, Aramis

exchanged the order with a paper from his pocket.
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Two prison guards arrived at the door and

Baisemeaux spoke to them. ‘Release the prisoner
named Seldon,’ he said. ‘Bring him here.’

‘Seldon? said Aramis. ‘No, no, my friend! The
prisoner’s name is Marchiali.’

Yes, that'’s right — Marchiali,” said Baisemeaux. ‘No!
No ! Not Marchiali! Seldon!

The wine had given Baisemeaux a headache. He
could not think clearly. He wanted to sleep.

‘Look at the order, Baisemeaux,’ said Aramis. ‘I read
the name Marchiali.’

The governor locked at the paper. *You're right,’ he
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said. “The name is Marchiali. You visited that man a
tew days ago, Bishop.’
Ten minutes later, Philippe was standing in the gover-
nor's room.
“You are a free man,’ Baisemeaux said to him.
Aramis put a hand on Philippe’s arm. ‘I will help
you," he said to him. ‘Come with me, Sit.’
Baisemeaux watched them leave. ‘Goodnight,’ he

said to Aramis. A moment later, he was asleep.

Aramis and Philippe left the Bastille in a carriage. The
horses pulled it quickly through the dark streets of
Paris. Two hours later, it was travelling through the
dark forest of Senart. In the middle of the forest, the
carriage stopped.

‘Soon, we will be at Vaux,” Aramis said to Philippe.
‘In the morning, we will go to Monsieur Fouquet's
house. But first, we must talk. Don’t worry. The driver
of the carriage cannot speak or hear.’

“You have the face of your brother, the King,' said
Aramis. ‘And after tomorrow, you will be the King.
Louis is going to take your place in prison.’

‘Will the people of France let me be their king?" said
Philippe. ‘My brother, Louis, will be very angry.’

‘“Who is going to listen to him? said Aramis. “Will
the walls of the prison listen to him?'

‘Louis must not stay in the Bastille,” said Philippe.
‘It is a terrible place! He must leave France.’

20



“You are a good man,’ said Aramis. ‘And you will be
a great king. Sir, [ sent a man to the Bastille with some
papers and some pictures for you. Did you study them?!

‘l studied them and I know them well,’ said
Philippe. ‘1 know about Queen Anne, my mother. |
know about my family and my ministers.’

‘“What do you know about Colbert? asked Aramis.

‘Colbert is the Second Minister of Finance,’ said
Philippe. ‘He is an enemy of Fouquet, the Chief
Minister of Finance. He wants the King to hate
Fouquet.’

‘Fouquet is a good man,’ said Aramis. ‘But he has
spent all his money. Soon, you must give him some
more. Next, tell me about D'Artagnan.’

“Yes,” said Philippe. “Your friend D’Artagnan is the
captain of the musketeers. Do you want me to send
him to prison?

‘No!" said Aramis. ‘1 will tell D’Artagnan about our
plan — but not yet. D'Artagnan is a good man, but he
will always fight for the King. Soon, you will be the
King. Then D'Artagnan will fight for you. But we must
be careful. He must not discover our plan now.’

‘Bishop,’ said Philippe. ‘You are going to make me
the King ot France. What shall [ do for you? What do
you want !’

‘Sir,” replied Aramis quietly. ‘I am the Bishop of
Vannes. But I want to be the Pope in Rome. [ will

make you the King of France. You must make me the

leader of the Catholic Church!’
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5
The Great House at Vaux

Everything was ready for the feast at Monsieur
Fouquet’s house at Vaux. It was the 15th August, and
the sun was bright in the sky.

Aramis was talking with Fouquet. The minister was
a worried man.

‘The King doesn't like me,’ he said. ‘And I don't
like him. But he is my King and he will be my guest. |
must try to love that young man.’

“Yes, you must try to love the King," said Aramis.
‘But don’t try to love Monsieur Colbert, and don't trust
him. He is your enemy!’

‘I will take you to your room now, Bishop,’ said
Fouquet. ‘Your room is the Blue Room. It is above the
King's room — the Gold Room. Have you brought
many servants with you?

‘I have only one servant with me,’ said Aramis. ‘He

will sleep on the tloor in my room.’

The King and his mother, Queen Anne, arrived at the
great house at Vaux at eight o'clock that evening. The
King's ministers and many other important people
arrived too. Everybody ate a wonderful meal. Then
they listened to music and they watched beautiful fire-
works in the gardens. At the end of the evening, every-

body received an expensive gift.
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Fouquet went with him.
‘Send Monsieur Colbert here,” the King said to

Fouquet. ‘I want to speak to him.’

That evening, [)’Artagnan had visited his friend
Aramis in the Blue Room. Porthos was in the bishop’s

room too, but he was asleep in a chair. He was snoring
loudly.
‘Aramis, my dear friend!’ said D’Artagnan. ‘Here we

are at Vaux.’
“Yes, said Aramis. ‘Do you like the house?

‘l do,” said D'Artagnan. ‘And I like Monsieur
Fouquet. But tell me something, Aramis. Why are you

Al



having secret meetings with Fouquet! Are you making
a plot with him?”

D'Artagnan looked carefully at his friend. ‘Aramis,’
he said. ‘Is the King in danger! Do you want to hurt
him! You will have to kill me first!”

‘I will never hurt the true King of France,’ said
Aramis, ‘You must believe that, D'Artagnan.’

D'Artagnan smiled. ‘Thank you, my friend,’ he said.
‘Now 1 must go to my room.”

“Where is that? asked Aramis.

‘It is next to the King's room,’ said D’Artagnan.

‘Please take Porthos to his own room,’ said Aramis.
‘I don’t want him to sleep here. He makes too much
noise!’

The two men left the Blue Room. Philippe came from
his hiding place behind the bed.

‘D'Artagnan is suspicious,’ he said to Aramis. “What
are we going to do now?!

“You are going to watch the King,’ said Aramis. “You
must watch all his movements. You must learn them.’

‘How can | watch him?!" Philippe asked.

‘There is an opening — here — in the floor,’ said
Aramis. He pointed to the floor in the middle of the
room. T hen he lifted a small piece of the wooden floor.

“You can look down into the King’s room through
this opening,’ he said. ‘Do you see him?”

Philippe looked down through the opening and he

saw his enemy.
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‘Yes, I see the King,” he said. ‘Colbert is with him.’
Aramis and Philippe listened to the conversation in

the Gold Room.
‘Tell me, Colbert,” the King said. “Where did

Fouquet get the money for this feast! Where did he get

the money for this house?”’

‘From your treasury, Sir,” Colbert teplied. ‘Thirteen
million francs is missing from the treasury.’

‘Can you prove that!" asked the King.

Yes, Sir,” said Colbert. *You must arrest Fouquet!’

The King was silent for a minute. Then he spoke.

‘T will think about this later,” he said.

Yes, Sir,” said Colbert. But he was angry. He wanted
the King to send Fouquet to prison. He wanted to be
the King's Chief Minister of Finance.

‘Goodnight, Sir," he said.

Aramis and Philippe watched Colbert leave the
King's room. They heard the King call for his servants.

‘Now watch again,” Aramis said to the young man.

“Watch his movements and learn!’
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The next day, the King and all Fouquet’s guests
enjoyed more music, more fireworks and more food.
But in the evening, the King sent for D'Artagnan.
Aramis and Philippe listened to the conversation
through the opening in the floor.

‘How many of your men are here at Vaux!' the King
asked I’ Artagnan.

I'] ]'I.E‘-’E tht" mUSkEIEEl—E hE‘TE, and '[“n'El'lt"}" ] h'Ef
guards, Sir," the captain replied.

‘Good! 1 want you to arrest Monsicur Fouquet,’ said
the King. ‘Do it this evening.’

“You want me to arrest Monsieur Fouquet, Sir!” said
Y Artagnan. He was surprised.

*Are you going to say, “l cannot do it”, D’ Artagnan?”
asked the King angrily.

‘No, Sir,” answered D'Artagnan, quickly. He moved
towards the door, then he stnppc&.

‘1 will do it,” he said. ‘But please give me a written
order for Fouquet's arrest. You are angry now. But soon
you will be calm. Then you —'

‘Stop!” said the King ‘Very well, D'Artagnan. 1 will
think about this again. You will have your written
order tomorrow! But watch Fouquet carefully until
then. He must not leave the house!’

Suddenly, the King was very tired.

‘Please go now, D'Artagnan,’ he said.

The captain lett the room. The King did not take
off his clothes, but he lay down on the huge pold bed.
A few minutes later, he was asleep.
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‘I Am the King of France!’

‘Am I dreaming?” Louis XIV asked himself.

There were two strange men next to his bed. Each
of them wore a black mask and each of them wore a
long cloak. One man held a lamp in his hand. The two
men were talking quietly.

The King was not dreaming — he had woken. And

he was in danger! He jumped from his bed.
“Who are you!" he asked the man with the lamp.

‘Are you servants of Monsieur Fouquet?”
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‘That isn't important,’ the man with the lamp
replied. ‘You must come with us!’

‘“What do you want? asked the King.

“You will know that scon,’ said the second man. He
was very big and tall.

The two men held the King’s arms and pulled him
to a secret door in the wall of his room. Then they
pushed him through the door, and down some stone
steps. The King looked around him and he saw wet
stone walls. They were in an underground passage!

‘Stop!” said the King. ‘I will not go with you! [ am
the King of France!”

‘The King!’ said the man with the lamp. ‘You must
try to forget that word, monsieur!’

Then the big man covered the King’s mouth with
one of his huge hands. He held Louis’ arm with his
other hand and pushed him along the underground
passage. At last, they came to a heavy door in the wall.
The man with the lamp opened the door with a key.
Suddenly, they were outside the house.

A carriage was waiting under some trees,

The big man pushed the King into the carriage. The
man with the lamp got into the catriage too. Then the
big man climbed up onto the seat at the front of the
carriage. Quietly, he drove it away from Vaux.

The carriage arrived at the Bastille prison at about
three o'clock in the morning.

The big man spoke to the guards at the gate.
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‘Wake the governor!" he said.

Five minutes later, Monsieur Baisemeaux came to
the gate. The man with the lamp opened the carriage
door. He spoke quickly to the big man. The big man
got down from the driver’s seat and he got into the
carriage. He held a gun against the King's head.

‘Don’t speak. 1 don’t want to shoot you,” he said.

The man with the lamp took off his mask. He
walked towards the governor.

‘Bishop!” said the governor. “Why are you here?”

‘There was a mistake, Monsieur Baisemeaux,’ said
Aramis. “You were right two days ago. The order paper
was for the release of Seldon, not Marchiali. I've
brought Marchiali back to you.’

‘This prisoner must not speak to anybody,’” Aramis
said. ‘He is mad. His face is like the King's face — you
remember that, Baisemeaux. Now he tells everybody,
“l am the King of France.” He must talk to nobody -
nobody except me, his guard and the King himself!’

Ten minutes later, the King of France was sitting in
Philippe’s cell in the prison.

Aramis and Porthos drove away from the Bastille in
the carriage. Soon, []‘lﬂ}' were on the road to Vaux.

And in the great house at Vaux, D’Artagnan was
speaking to Fouquet.

‘Tomorrow, the King is going to give me orders for
your arrest,” he said. ‘Until then, I must watch you,
monsieur. You must not leave the house.’
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Louis and Philippe

I'm a prisoner in the Bastille!
Fouquet did this! | will kill him!
But first, | must get out of here.
Guards! Bring me the governor!

&l

But there was no reply. No guards came. Louis was

angry and frichtened. He picked up the chair and he
threw it against the wall. For an hour, he shouted and
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screamed. But then he became calm. He started to
think more clearly.

Some hours later, there was a noise outside Louis’
cell. Then the door opened and a guard came in with
some food.

“You made a lot of noise and you broke your chair,’
said the guard. ‘Why did you do it, Monsieur
Marchiali? You were always a calm and sensible prison-
er. Please don't do this again.’

‘Listen to me!’ said Louis. ‘I have a message for the
covernor. Tell him, “The King of France wants to talk
to him.” Do it! Do it now!’

The guard laughed. Then he went quickly from the
cell and he locked the door.

In the great house at Vaux, Philippe was asleep in the
King's bed. Night became day, and Aramis came quiet-
ly into the room. He woke the young man.

‘It is done, Sit," Aramis told Philippe. ‘Everything
went well.’

‘Where is our friend, Porthos? asked Philippe. ‘He
must have a gift. He's going to be a duke.’

Aramis laughed.

“Why are you laughing, Bishop! said Philippe.

‘Oh, Sir!” said Aramis. ‘Yes, make Porthos a duke.
He'll die of happiness!’

Suddenly, there was a knock at the door.

‘D'Artagnan is here,’ said Philippe. ‘He has come

for his orders.’
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“You must not talk to D'Artagnan now,’ said
Aramis. ‘He will be suspicious. | will send him away.’
He hurried to the door.

D’Artagnan saw Aramis coming out of the King's
room. He was surprised.

‘Aramis!’ he said. “Why are you here?

Aramis smiled, but he did not answer the question.

‘It is early,” he said. “The King does not want to talk
to anybody now. He is very tired.’

‘But the King wanted to talk to me this morning,’
said D' Artagnan.

‘Come back later, D'Artagnan! Later!’ said the
King's voice from inside the Gold Room.

Aramis gave D'Artagnan a paper. ‘Here is the King's
first order for the day,’ he said.

D’Artagnan read the paper. ‘Oh!” he said.

‘I will go with you to Monsieur Fouquet,’ said
Aramis. ‘He will be very happy to see us. Do you
understand now, D'Artagnan

“Yes,’ said the captain of the King's Musketeers. But
he thought, ‘No, no! I do not understand. But I will
obey my King!’

D’Artagnan looked carefully at Aramis. ‘Tell me,’
he said. “When did you become friends with the King!
You've spoken to him only three times in your life!’

‘I've spoken to him more than a hundred times,’

said Aramis. ‘But our meetings were secret!’
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Fouquet Learns the Secret

Fouquet was waiting in his room. The door opened and
Aramis and D’Artagnan came in.

‘Monsieur, | am not going to arrest you,’ said
D'Artagnan. ‘The King has given me orders. He thanks
you for the feast. He is your good triend.’

Fouquet was surprised. He did not reply.

Then Aramis spoke to D'Artagnan.

“You will be busy this morning, Captain,’ he said. ‘I
will talk with Monsieur Fouquet.’

[’Artagnan said goodbye and he left Aramis and
Fouquet alone together. Immediately, Fouquet spoke.

‘What is happening!” he asked. ‘The King wanted to
arrest me, but now [ am free. | do not understand.’

‘Thirteen million francs is missing from the treas-
ury,” said Aramis. ‘The King knows about that. Colbert
told him.’

‘Yes, the money is missing,’ said Fouquet. ‘But Louis
XIII's finance minister stole the money.’

‘The King does not believe that,” Aramis replied.
‘The King thinks, “Fouquet is a criminal.” And
Colbert wants him to think that. Colbert wants to be
Chief Minister of Finance.’

‘But why am [ now a free man? said Fouquet. ‘You
have a secret, Bishop. What did the King say to you?

Louis doesn't trust you, | know that.’
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‘The King trusts me now,’ said Aramis.

Fouquet began to understand. ‘There is a secret
between you and the King,” he said. ‘Please tell me
about it.’

Then Aramis told Fouquet his story. The King's
minister listened for a few minutes, But suddenly, he
did not want to know more.

‘But the King —' he said. He put his hand on his
sword.

‘Which king? said Aramis. ‘One king hates you,
Monsieur Fouquet. The other king likes you.’

‘The King — the King of yesterday,’ said Fouquet.

‘The King of yesterday! said Aramis. ‘Be sure about
this. The King of yesterday is in the Bastille. I took
him there last night!’

‘My God!” said Fouquet. ‘That was a crime. A crime

qgamat my guest, myr King!’
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‘But King Louis wanted to arrest you,’ said Aramis.
‘And he wanted to kill you. Now he is in prison, and
you are going to live.’

“You are a traitor!” said Fouquet. ‘I will kill you!”

He lifted his sword. Then he threw it to the ground.

‘No!" he said. ‘I can’t kill you. You wanted to help
me. But I'll go to the Bastille. I'll release the King. You
must leave this house, Aramis. And you must leave
France. I'll go to Paris now. | will not return for four
hours. And in four hours’ time, you must be a long way
from here.’

‘Four hours!” said Aramis.

“You have my promise,’ said Fouquet. *You have four
hours. Then the King's soldiers will try to find you.
Take my best horses. Ride to the coast. Then take a
ship to Belle-Isle. The island is mine. Nobody will hurt
you there. Go now!’

Fouquet left the room.

Aramis was angry and unhappy. His plan had not
succeeded.

‘Shall 1 go to Belle-Isle alone!” thought Aramis.
‘Shall I take Philippe with me? No, [ can’t do that.
Philippe was a prisoner for eight years, and he can be a
prisoner again. But I will not leave my dear friend,
Porthos. He must come with me.’

The Bishop hurried to Porthos’ room.

‘Porthos,” he said. “We're going to leave Vaux now.
We're going to ride to the coast. And we're going to

ride faster than ever before.’
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Porthos put on his cloak and he picked up his sword.
Qutside the room, the two men met D’Artagnan.

‘Are you leaving Vaux?' asked D'Artagnan. ‘Where
are you going !’

‘“We have orders from the King, D'Artagnan,’ said
Aramis. ‘Have you spoken to Fouquet?”

‘Yes, a few minutes ago,’ said D’Artagnan. ‘He was
in his carriage, on the road.’

“What did he say to you?” asked Aramis,

‘He said goodbye,” replied D'Artagnan. ‘He said
nothing more.’

‘Come, Porthos,’ said Aramis. ‘Are you ready! We

must do the King's work.’
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The Bishop’s Plot

Fouquet’s carriage went quickly to the Bastille. But the
cuards at the gate of the prison did not recognize the
minister.

‘1 am Fouquet!" he shouted. ‘I am the King's Chief
Minister of Finance.’

‘It’s not true!’ shouted one of the guards. ‘Monsieur
Fouquet is at Vaux!”

Then, Baisemeaux came from his rooms.

‘Ah! Minister,” he said. ‘I'm sorry. 1 —

‘It’s all right,” Fouquet said. ‘Your guards do their job
well, Baisemeaux. I will tell the King that. But [ want
to talk to you.’

He followed the governor to his room.

‘Have you seen the Bishop of Vannes in the last few
days? Fouquet asked.

“Yes, monsieur,’ said Baisemeaux. ‘And he was here
last night.’

“Why did you help him with the crime? asked
Fouquet.

‘The crime!" said Baisemeaux. “What crime?”’

‘The Bishop brought a prisoner here last night,’ said
Fouquet.

“Yes,' said Baisemeaux. ‘That is right.’

‘Take me to him immediately,” said Fouquet.

‘To Marchiali? said Baisemeaux.
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‘Marchiali?” Fouquet said. “Who is Marchiali?’

‘The Bishop’s prisoner,” Baisemeaux replied. ‘Are
you going to take him away! That will make me happy!
He screams and he shouts. He shouts, “l am the King
of France!” He's a madman.’

‘Take me to his cell immediately,’ said Fouquet.

‘Do you have the order? asked Baisemeaux,

‘What order!” asked Fouquet.

‘The order from the King,’ said Baisemeaux. ‘The
Bishop said, “Only 1 or the King himself must talk to
this prisoner.” 1 will take you to the prisoner, but first 1
must have an order from the King.’

‘1 will write you an order later,” said Fouquet. ‘But
take me to the prisoner now! Do you want me to bring
ten thousand men and thirty large guns here?

Baisemeaux was frightened. He took Fouquet along
the terrible passages of the prison. Soon, the minister
heard the King's voice. The young king was screaming
for help. They arrived at the door of his cell.

‘Give me the key!" said Fouquet. He took it from
the governor. ‘Now go! Later, I'll call you. Then you
must come back quickly.’

Fouquet put the key into the door. Motre screams
came from inside the cell.

‘Help! Help! I am the King of France!’ the voice
shouted. ‘Monsieur Fouquet brought me here! Fouquet
must die! The traitor must die!’

The door opened. For a moment, the two men

looked at each other. Then the King spoke quietly.
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‘Are yvou going to kill me, Fouquet? he said.

‘Sir, don't you recognize your true friend?” Fouquet
replied.

‘My tfriend — you!” said Louis.

‘Sir,’ said Fouquet. ‘You are free now.” And he told

the King about Aramis’ plot.
‘I don't believe this story about a twin brother,’ said

the King. ‘It's impossible! These lies are part of the

Bishop's plot. Baisemeaux is part of it too.’

‘No, Sir,’ said Fouquet. ‘The Bishop of Vannes
tricked the governor. Baisemeaux is an honest man.
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But the Bishop prepared his plot carefully. He thought,
“Marchiali has the face of the King. The King's minis-
ters, his mother, and his family will believe in him.”
That is the truth, Sir!’

‘“Where is the Bishop now!? asked the King.

‘He'’s at my house at Vaux,’ replied Fouquet.

‘At Vaux!” said the King. ‘Have you arrested him?’

‘No, Sir. I wanted to release you first,’ said Fouquet.
‘But now, give me your orders.’

Louis thought for a few seconds. Then he spoke.

‘Bring a hundred soldiers here,’ he said. “They will
come with us to Vaux. The traitors are going to die.’

‘But Sir, is this man, Marchiali, your twin brothet?
said Fouquet. ‘You cannot kill your brother.’

‘1 don't believe that story!” said Louis angrily. ‘He is
not my brother! He will die! All the traitors will die.’

‘Sir,’ said Fouquet. ‘Please do not kill the Bishop or
his friend, Porthos.’

‘They will die!” replied the King. ‘Please do not
speak about them again.’

‘I'm sorry, Sir,’ said Fouquet. ‘I must tell you some-
thing. I gave the Bishop and his friend my best horses.
They are going to escape to my island of Belle-Isle.’

‘My Musketeers will capture Belle-Isle,” said the
King. ‘And they will kill these two traitors!’

Fouquet left the cell and he called the governor.
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The Brothers

[t was late morning. At Vaux, Philippe was wearing
King Louis’ clothes. He called his servants and he gave
them some orders. Next, he had to meet his mother,
Queen Anne,

‘My brother Louis loves her,” Philippe thought. ‘I
must love her too. I was a prisoner for many years, but |
must try to forgive her for that.’

Queen Anne came to the King's room.

‘Louis, my son,’ she said. “What are you going to do
about Monsieur Fouquet?”

Philippe kissed the Queen’s hand.

‘1 want you to be friends with Monsieur Fouquet,
Mother," he said.

At that moment, D'Artagnan arrived.

‘Captain, where is your friend, the Bishop of
Vannes?' Philippe asked him. ‘I'm waiting for him, but
he hasn’t come. Please find him.’

[’Artagnan did not understand.

‘The King sent Aramis and Porthos away,’ he
thought. ‘They are doing some secret work for him.
Why does he want me to find Aramis now?!

Suddenly there was a sound outside the room. It was
the voice of Fouquet.

‘This way!" the minister said. “This way, Sir!’

Everybody turned towards the doorway.
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Fouquet

Kir:lg Louis!

The person in the doorway was

as standing behind him.

W

Queen Anne screamed.

face

L]

at each other. Louis

looked
and hair were the same as Philippe’s. For a moment,

Louis and Philippe

2

Queen Anne did not guess the truth. King Louis
4

moved towards her.
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‘Mother,” he said. ‘Don’t you recognize your son?

Then Philippe spoke.

‘Mother,” he said calmly. ‘Don’t you recognize your
son?!’

Queen Anne'’s face became pale. Her body started
to shake.

Louis turned to D’Artagnan. He pointed to

Philippe’s face and then to his own face.
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‘Captain,’ he said. ‘One of us has been a prisoner for
eight years. The prisoner has not felt the warmth of
the sun on his skin. Look at our faces. Who has the
palest face! Who has the face of a prisoner — he or [7

D'Artagnan put his hand on Philippe’s shoulder.
‘Monsieur,” he said. ‘I arrest you. You are my prisoner!’

Philippe did not reply. He looked at his brother
again. After a moment, King Louis walked out of the
room. Philippe spoke quietly to his mother.

‘l am your son,’ he said. ‘You have made me very
unhappy, but I cannot hate you.’

At that moment, Colbert came into the room. He
gave a paper to D'Artagnan. The captain of the musket-
eers read it.

“What is it, Captain! asked Philippe.

‘This is an order from the King,"” D'Artagnan said
angrily to Philippe. ‘Read it.’

Monsiciur D'Artaqnan

Take the risoner o the aﬂ:
ﬂn ﬂrw u ﬂd of Sain
Cﬁ'vﬂr“ ﬂ‘lf
nar.; am withy Ay
wan maﬁk-ﬁ He must
HEver remove this mask.
Nabopl MUSE ever $¢¢e his

_fm agam,
louis
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Philippe gave the paper back to D'Artagnan. ‘My
brother is clever,” he said. ‘He is a great man! I am
ready.’ He smiled sadly.

“You are a great man too, Sir,’ said D"Artagnan.

Aramis and Porthos rode fast towards the west coast of
France. Porthos did not understand the reason for their
journey.

‘“Why did we leave Vaux, Aramis! he asked. ‘The
King is going to make me a duke.’

Aramis smiled, but he did not answer.

By evening, the two travellers were at Blois. They
were 250 kilometres from the coast and their horses
were tired.

‘Our friend, Athos, lives near here,’ said Aramis.
‘We'll visit him. He will give us different horses.’
Athos was walking in the garden of his fine house. His
servant told him about the arrival of his friends. Athos
was pleased to see them.

“You must stay here at my house, my dear friends,’
he said.

“Yes!” said Porthos. ‘And | must tell you my good
news. The King is going to make me a duke.’

Athos was surprised. Aramis put a hand on Athos’
arm and the two men moved away from Porthos.

‘1 must speak to you alone, Athos," said Aramis very
quietly. “We are in trouble. Porthos doesn’t know about

it. I made a plot against the King, but the plot did not
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succeed. Now the King's Musketeers are trying to
capture me.’

‘But why is the King going to make Porthos a duke?”
asked Athos.

‘Louis will not make Porthos a duke,’ said Aramis.
‘Dear Porthos! The plot was mine, but he is in danger

1

too.

‘My dear friend!’ said Athos. ‘How did this happen!
Tell me everything.’

Aramis told his story and Athos listened carefully.

‘It was a clever plan, Aramis,’ said Athos. ‘But — it
was a crime!’

‘I'm going to take Porthos to Belle-Isle with me,’
said Aramis. ‘He didn't know about the plot, but the
King won't believe that. Will you come to Belle-Isle
with us, Athos?

‘No, my friend,’ said Athos. ‘King Louis is my King.
[ will not come with you. Do not ask that.’

‘Then I'll ask something different,’ said Aramis.
‘Will you give us your two best horses? We must ride
quickly to the coast and our horses are tired.’

Yes, I'll do that for you,’” Athos replied. “Will you be
safe on Belle-Isle?

‘Belle-Isle belongs to Monsieur Fouquet,” Aramis
replied. ‘The King's soldiers will not attack it.’

‘1 do not believe that, my friend,’ said Athos. ‘Be

careful! The King is clever and strong.’
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The Meetings at Nantes

Four weeks had passed. The King was meeting all his
ministers in the town of Nantes.

‘Where is D'Artagnan? the King asked Colbert.

At that moment, D'Artagnan entered the room.

‘D’ Artagnan!’ said the King happily.

D’Artagnan was angry. ‘Sir, your musketeers have
attacked Monsieur Fouquet’s family,’” he said. ‘Did you
give them orders about that?”

‘No!" said Louis.

‘Then the orders came trom Monsieur Colbert!” said
D’Artagnan. He pointed at Colbert. ‘He gave the
orders!’

‘What orders? said Louis. ‘Tell me.’

‘Somebody gave orders to your musketeers, Sir,’ said
D'Artagnan. ‘They searched Monsieur Fouquet’s
house. They beat his servants. They arrested his friends
and his family.’

‘D’Artagnan!’ said the King. ‘Forget about this! 1
gave you orders. Have you arrested Fouquet?

‘Yes, Sit,’ said D' Artagnan.

‘Where is he now? asked the King.

‘He is travelling to the Bastille,” D'Artagnan
replied.

‘“Why didn't you go with him?" asked Louis. ‘He

must not escape.’
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“You must understand something, Sir,’ said the cap-
tain of the musketeers. ‘I want Monsieur Fouquet to
escape. | sent the most stupid of my men as his guards.
[ cannot be the enemy of Monsieur Fouquet. He is a
good man. He released you from the Bastille. You must
remember that.’

The King was silent for a minute or two. Then he
spoke.

‘D’Artagnan, you must go to Belle-Isle today,’ he
said coldly. ‘Take two hundred men with you. You must
capture the island and the fort. Don't return here
without the keys of the fort at Belle-Isle!”

D'Artagnan left the room and Colbert followed
him.

“You have friends on Belle-Isle, D'Artagnan,’ the
minister said. ‘And now you must kill your friends!”

Colbert laughed and he returned to the King,

Fifteen minutes later, D'Artagnan received a

written order from King Louis.

Pestroy the fort o
Bm-f'{ﬂo, F{obod»ff

must escape. Find

the two Ltrailors -

the Bishop of Vannes
and his friend, Porthos.

Find them and kil
ﬂ‘mar L
| oses
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Belle-Isle

Aramis and Porthos were walking along a beach on
Belle-1sle. The beach was near the fort.

‘Aramis, please sit down,’ Porthos said. ‘Sit down
and tell me something. Why are we here! Why —7

‘Porthos, what is that, over there! asked Aramis
suddenly. He was pointing out across the sea.

‘It’s a ship!" said Porthos. ‘No — there are five, six,
seven ships!’

‘Porthos,’ said Aramis quickly. ‘Those are the King's
ships. They are bringing soldiets here. They will attack
the island. Tell the islanders about the ships. They
must get their guns. They must be ready!’
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‘T'll do it now, Aramis,” Porthos said. ‘But then you
must answer my questions.’

He went towards the fort.

Aramis watched the ships coming nearer. Then he
saw a small boat leaving one of them. The ships
stopped and the small boat sailed towards the island.
Some minutes later, the boat arrived at the beach and
a young man jumped out of it. Aramis knew the young
man. He was a fisherman from Belle-Isle.

At that moment, Porthos returned from the fort.

‘Jonathan,” Aramis said to the young fisherman.
‘“Who sent you here?”’

‘The King’s soldiers sent me,’ said Jonathan. ‘They
took me and my friends from our boat. The captain of
the King’s Musketeers gave me this letter for you.’

‘D'Artagnan!’ said Porthos. ‘Our friend!”

Aramis read the letter,

7&/‘&;’5 s fﬁ*fﬂ. me ovlers.
[/ musé capture Bette -{ste.
Aase arrested FMM . fle
(S in the Bastille prison. {
Mmust tallk O you.

ﬂ’mgﬂﬂﬂ "
Aramis’ face became pale.
‘“What is wrong!" asked Porthos.
‘Nothing, my friend,’ said Aramis. ‘Jonathan, did

yvou speak to Monsieur D'Artagnan?

“Yes, monsieur,’ said Jonathan.
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‘What did he say to you!” asked the Bishop.

‘He said, “Bring the Bishop of Vannes and his friend
to this ship. I must talk to them.” Will you come?
Jonathan said.

‘We will not come with you,” Aramis said. ‘Return
to the ship. Talk to the captain. He must come to the
island. We will talk to him here. He must come alone.’

The young man went back to his boat and Porthos
and Aramis walked up the stone steps of the fort.

‘I don't understand anything!’ said Porthos,

“You will soon understand,” Aramis replied.

The two men sat down at the top of the steps. After
a few moments silence, Aramis began to speak.

‘My friend, I tried to help a young man,’ said the
Bishop of Vannes. ‘I wanted him to take the place of
King Louis. But Louis knows about my plot. Now we
are both enemies of the King.’

‘Oh!” said Porthos. ‘“This is bad news.’

‘Do not worry, Porthos,’ said Aramis. “We are in
danger, but we will get out of this trouble. D' Artagnan
will help us.’

‘I'm not worried about the danger,” said Porthos.
‘But I don't like the words, “enemies of the King”. The
King wanted me to be a duke!’

‘The other king wanted you to be a duke,’ said
Aramis.

*Ah! I understand at last,’ said Porthos. ‘And now 1
am King Louis’ enemy.’

‘Oh, 1 can change that, my friend,’ said Aramis. ‘I
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made the plot. | wanted somebody to help me. I didn't
tell you about the plot, but I asked for your help. You
remembered our words, “All for one, and one for all”,
and you came with me. The King will understand that.’

‘Look!” said Porthos. ‘Somebody is coming from one
of the ships. It is D'Artagnan!’

The captain of the musketeers sailed to the beach in
a small boat. Then he walked up the steps towards
Porthos and Aramis.

‘The King is suspicious of me,’ he said to them. “We
must be very careful. You are my dearest friends. The
King knows that. He will think, “D'Artagnan will try
to help his friends. They will try to escape and he will
not stop them.” The King wants me to kill you. But I
will not do that. You must talk to the King. Will you
come to the King now?”

‘I must stay at Belle-Isle,’” said Aramis. ‘But you
must take Porthos with you. You can help him,
D'Artagnan. He was not part of this plot. You must tell
the King that.’

‘Will you come with me, Porthos, my friend? asked
D’ Artagnan.

Porthos looked at Aramis. ‘No!” he said.

‘Then [ have some other plans,’ said D’Artagnan.
He talked to his friends for a few more minutes. After

that, he went back to his boat.

D'Artagnan sailed back to his ship and he spoke to his

musketeers.
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‘Gentlemen,' he said to them. ‘I went to Belle-Isle.
There are many men with guns in the fort. We must
capture the island, but it will not be easy.’

‘Monsieur,’ said one yvoung musketeer. ‘You say,
“There are many men with guns in the fort.” Will
these men fight against their King”

‘Belle-Isle belongs to Monsieur Fouquet,’ said
D’Artagnan. ‘Fouquet is not on the island. 1 arrested
him yesterday. But the people on the island do not
know that. They are not clever people, but they are
Fouquet’s men. They love him. They will fight for him.
They will not give his island to us. 1 am going to bring
the two chief officers from the fort to this ship. They
are clever men. I want to talk to them. We will tell
them, “Monsieur Fouquet is a prisoner. This is the
King’s island now.” They will send a message to the
people in the fort. Then we will take the two men back
to the mainland.’

The young musketeer gave D'Artagnan a paper.

‘These are my orders from the King, monsieur,’” he
said. ‘Read them.’

D’'Artagnan read the paper.

Mﬂﬂ.ﬁm P ﬁrbﬂ NAY? Must
ot rm a $Ers brormny
the uland o thf, ships,

Vau mu!f cagtum the island

t Kill the
E'Lﬁhap af Vannes and his

friend. lﬂms
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D’Artagnan was angry. ‘The King did not give his
secret orders to me,’ he thought. ‘He gave them to
another soldier.’

‘I must go to the King immediately and [ must
resign from the musketeers,” he said to the soldiers.
“You must all come back to the mainland with me now.
We will go to Nantes and the King will give you a new
captain. Those are my orders to you, gentlemen!’

The young musketeer stepped forward again. He
cgave [D’Artagnan another paper. The captain read it.

His face became pale.

Monsicur P Artagran will
resign, He wild )’

this immedia

thae, he wilk no ngﬂr he

the captam of usketees
No man must ﬂbey s ordé¢rs.
Yo must show him this
order and au must arrest
him, He wi ynm risoncey
Yoiuuw And three other’ mew
Mist brmsl him to INantes.
Your solders must captuwe

Beue-lsie.  ouis

oI

Ten minutes later, D'Artagnan was in another ship.
He heard the first sounds of fighting from Belle-Isle.

And an hour later, the ship reached the coast of the

mainland.
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Escape

D'Artagnan had left Belle-Isle. Aramis and Porthos
watched his small boat returning to the King’s ships. A
few minutes later, all the ships started to sail towards
the mainland. Aramis turned to his friend.

‘D’Artagnan’s first plan did not succeed, Porthos,’
he said. ‘He cannot take us to the mainland. Now he
will resign from the musketeers. He will go to the King
in Nantes. The ships will go back to the mainland with
D'Artagnan. They will not come here again until
tomorrow. We will escape tonight! There is a boat
inside the Locmaria cave. We will take it. We will go
to Spain.’

Suddenly they heard somebody shouting from the
fort, “The soldiers are coming!’ the man shouted.

‘They didn't go to the mainland,’ said Aramis. ‘It
was a trick!’

Aramis and Porthos looked back to the sea. Near
the beach, they saw many small boats. The boats were
full of the King’s soldiers.

‘Get your swords! Get your guns!” Aramis shouted
to the islanders.

A few minutes later, the fighting began. The soldiers
fought the men of Belle-Isle, and Porthos and Aramis
fought against the King's men. It was a long fight, but

at last the King's soldiers started to run back to their
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boats. Aramis and Porthos followed them.

But a few minutes later, the two men heard the
sound of guns on the other side of the island.

‘Another trick!” said Aramis angrily. “We were fight-
ing the men at the fort. But at the same time, more
soldiers were coming to the other side of the island!’

Soon, all the men and women of the island were

running into the fort.

‘What shall we do? they asked Aramis.

‘My friends,’ said the Bishop. ‘“The King has arrested
Monsieur Fouquet. He is in the Bastille prison. Our
friend D’Artagnan told us that. Now you must obey
the King's orders. Do not fight the soldiers any more.
Put down your guns. Go back peacefully to your
homes,’

The people were surprised, but they turned and
went quietl‘y away.

“We have saved these people,’ said Aramis. ‘But the
soldiers will try to kill us. We must run to the cave
now! Qur boat is waiting, and there are three friends
there. They will help us!”

A few minutes later, Aramis and Porthos were in a
dark passage at the back of Locmaria cave. They could
not see anything.

‘Are you there, Yves!" Aramis said quietly. ‘Is every-
thing ready?”

“Yes, monsieur,” a voice replied. ‘I am here. Jean is

here. And his son is with us too.’
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Aramis and Porthos walked out of the passage and
into the large cave. Yves, Jean, and his son were wait-
ing by a small boat. At the other end of the cave there
was an opening — the mouth of the cave. Qutside the
mouth of the cave was a beach.

‘Move the boat out to the sea,’ said Aramis.

The three men began to move the boat towards the

mouth of the cave. But suddenly there was shouting

from the back of the passage.




‘My friend,” Aramis said to Porthos. ‘Our enemies
are coming along the passage. Hide in that corner. The
King's soldiers will come out of the passage one by one.
Kill them quietly!”

Porthos went to a dark corner on one side of the
passage., He picked up a heavy rock. Aramis went to
another corner,

Suddenly, an officer walked out of the passage into
the cave.

‘Now!" said Aramis quietly.

Porthos hit the officer on the head with the rock.
The man fell to the ground. He was dead! Aramis
pulled him into his corner.

After a few seconds, another soldier followed the
officer. ‘Now!" said Aramis again.

Ten times Aramis said, ‘Now!' Ten times the rock
came down. Ten men died!

But a minute or two later, the two friends heard
more soldiers arriving in the passage. And a few
moments after that, an officer — a captain — came into
the cave. He could not see the first group of soldiers,
and he could not hear them. He did not understand.

“Where are they! he asked himself. ‘1 heard no guns
from inside the cave.’

At that moment, a man’s huge hand came out from
a corner of the cave. The hand went to the captain’s
neck. And a minute later, the dead officer fell to the
eround. But a second officer was close behind him. He

saw the captain fall. He shouted to his men.
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Rocks began to fall from the roof of the cave.

Aramis ran out to the beach. Porthos tried to escape
too, but a very large rock fell on him.

‘Porthos! Porthos!” Aramis shouted.

The Bishop ran back into the cave, but he was too
late. Aramis heard his friend’s last cry of pain. Then
everything was silent,

Yves, Jean, and Jean's son took Aramis to the boat.
They got into it and sailed out from the beach.

‘My brave friend is dead,’ thought Aramis. ‘Dear
Porthos! He always wanted to help other people.’

An hour later, the little boat was sailing towards Spain.

The three men from Belle-Isle watched Aramis
sadly. There were tears in the Bishop's eyes. Soon he

was asleep.
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The Last Musketeer

D’Artagnan was talking with the King in Nantes.

‘Sir, yvou wanted me to kill my friends,’ the angry
musketeer said. ‘That was wrong!’

‘But those men put me in the Bastille, my dear
D’Artagnan,’ said the King. ‘Have you forgotten that?

At that moment, an officer entered the room with a
message for the King. The King read it, then he looked
at D'Artagnan.

‘Monsieur,” he said. ‘There has been a battle at
Belle-Isle. My soldiers have captured the island.’

‘“What happened to my friends, Sir” D’Artagnan
asked the King.

‘They left the island in a small boat,’ said the King.
“You are angry with me, D'Artagnan. But you are a
cood man. You resigned from my musketeers. [ want
you to think again about that.’

‘l am thinking about the men of Belle-Isle,” replied
D'Artagnan. ‘They are good men too!”

‘Do you want me to release them? said the King.

‘1 do, Sir,’ said D'Artagnan.

‘Very well,’ said the King. ‘Go now. Tell them, “The
King is kind. You are free men.” But go quickly.
Tomorrow, [ will travel to Paris, and I want you to
come with me. Tomorrow, you will be the captain of

my musketeers again.’
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D’ Artagnan went quickly to Belle-Isle, but he learnt
nothing about his friends. He saw many dead soldiers
in the cave. He saw some huge rocks near the mouth of
the cave. They had fallen from the roof. He also heard
a story about a small boat. The islanders had seen it
sailing towards Spain.

The next day, D’Artagnan travelled to Paris with
King Louis. But in Paris, D'Artagnan received bad
news.

‘Sir, my friend Porthos is dead,” D’Artagnan said to
the King. ‘He died at Belle-Isle. But Aramis escaped.’

‘1 knew that, D'Artagnan,’ the King said quietly.

“You knew it, but you didn't tell me? said
D'Artagnan.

‘Yes,' said the King. ‘Porthos was killed by a rock at
Locmaria. And the Bishop of Vannes escaped to Spain
in a small boat.’

‘But Sir, how did you know about that?' asked
[ Artagnan.

‘How did you know about it, D' Artagnan? asked the
King.

‘1 had a letter from Aramis, Sir," said D'Artagnan,
‘He wrote to me from Bayonne, near Spain. | received
the letter an hour ago.’

The King took a paper from a box on a table.

‘Here is a copy of Aramis’ letter,” said the King.
‘Monsieur Colbert put it into my hands eight hours
ago. D'Artagnan, 1 can bring Aramis back to France.

But I'm not going to do that. He will be a free man.’
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‘Thank you, Sir!" said )’Artagnan quietly.

This was the last adventure of the Four Musketeers. A
year later, Athos died at his home in Blois. And three
years after that, )'Artagnan died too. He was fighting
for his king, and he died bravely. His last words were
these —

‘Athos, Porthos! Soon, | will see you in heaven.
Goodbye, until we meet again. Aramis, goodbye for
ever!’

Three of the Four Musketeers were dead. Never

again did they say, ‘All for one, and one for all!’




Exercises

Multiple Choice 1

Tick the best answer.

Monsicur D'Aytagnan

on the istand of Sainte-
risénev'’s face with an

f ace Agaun.
|owis

Take the g‘ri.wmzr ko the fort

never remove this mask.
Noboaly must eves s¢ee his

1 In which language did Alexandre Dumas write this story?
French.
(] English.
¢ [ Russian.

o o

In which year does this story take place?
[] 1846.
b [14761.
c M 1661.

"B oS}

3 The order about the prisoner was for Monsieur D’Artagnan.
Who was Monsieur D’Artagnan?

a [] The Chief Minister of Finance.

b The captain of the King’s Musketeers.

¢ [ A police officer in Paris.
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4 The order was from Louis. Who was Louis?
a  [ElEThe Bishop of Vannes,

b 8] /e Governor of the Bastille Prison.

c Al King of France.

Why did the prisoner have to wear an jron mask?
[ 1 So he could not run away.
[ 1/So he could not eat or drink.

[/ So no one could see the prisoner’s face.

Why was the mask made of iron?

[1/So that it was uncomfortable.

[V So that nobody could remove it,

[_] Because all Prisoners wore iron masks.

Why didn’t Louis want anyone to see the prisoner’s face?
] Because the prisoner was very ugly.

[]/Because the Prisoner was more handsome than Louis.
Because the prisoner looked exactly like Louis.

What is a fort?

A strong place, like
leave easily.

[ building, like a palace. A king lives there.

[] A place for ships. It has many guards.

a castle or prison. Nobody can enter or

Vhat is an island?

BN

A piece of land. It is almost surrounded by water.
A beach. You can only reach it by ship.

| S | ‘L__J 1

A piece of land., It is completely surrounded by water.

Who was the prisoner?
| Louis’ Chief Minister of Finance.
| Louis’ brother.

| One of Louis’ musketeers,
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Grammar Focus: must and imperatives
Rewrite the sentences using must or mustn’t.

1 Don’t let anyone see his face.

Rewrite the sentences using the imperative form.

6 You must destroy the fort of Belle-Isle.
Destroy the fort of Belle-Isle.

Making Sentences

Write questions for the answers.

(3]
—
5
Q
=

Y
=
<=
=

1
—
==
=

_
5
=
Q
g

S
g
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Philippe Escapes From the Bastille

Complete the gaps. Use each word in the box once.

talk prison terrible study house know greﬁx man Seeond
bmther stay enemy mother King hate carriage

carriage

Aramis and Philippe left the Bastille in a Yevsbsssusanssres R essiniiss s SOON,

we will be at Vaux,” Aramis said to Philippe. ‘In the morning, we will
g0 to Monsieur Fouquet's . But first, we
LT R S worry. The driver of the

carriage cannot speak or *......

“You have the face of your Nasresnimessamisenssmsrssrissisias the King,

said Aramis. ‘And after tomorrow, you will be the
B i - Louis is going to take your place in

‘Louis must not *............... - in the Bastille,’ said Philippe.

IR et i e place! He must leave France.’

‘You are a good man,’ said Aramis. ‘And you will be a
Wi : e MAGSIE L sent & Y, iorrensmssismsesissionsas
to the Bastille with some papers and some pictures for you. Did you

g R, < 1

‘I studied them and 1 .. P .. them well,’ said
Philippe. ‘I know abour Quetn Anne my "“.....

I know about my family and my ministers.'
‘What do you know about Colbert? asked Aramis.

‘Colbert is the ....... . Minister of Finance,’ said

Philippe. ‘He is an .. o .. of Fouquer, the Chief
Minister of Finance. He wants the Klng to
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Words From the Story

(

e s

Write each word from the box next to the correct meaning.

1 fuse a piece of rope or cloth which burns quickly
(noun)

2 - believing that someone has done something
wrong (adjective)

3 . This person harms his country or his king.
(noun)

4 - the opposite of attack; to protect a place or
person against attack (verb)

5 - This crime means you do something to harm
your country or king. (noun)

6 « This means ‘to catch’ or ‘to take’ (a prisoner
or a place) (verb)

7 - to make a secret plan to do something
illegal or wrong (verb)

8 - to break something completely (verb)

Complete the sentences using the correct form of the words from the

box above.

a  King Louis XIII said, * .. the mirrors in the

house. My son must never see hlb tdcc :

D'Artagnan asked Aramis: ‘Why are you having secret meetings

with Fouquet? He was s OF his friend,
Colbert said: ‘Fouquet is gulley of it

D’Artagnan did not know about 05t S S L
against the King.
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¢ King Louis told his soldiers: * =
find the Bishop of Vannes and his friend Porthos.”

Bell-Isle and

Desproy

g The King's soldiers attacked Belle-lsle, but Fouguet's men

................................... the island.

h King Louis onlered his guards: *Kill the Arnamis,”

Aramis and Porthos found a big barrel of gunpowder. Aramis lit the
and Porthos threw the barrel at their enemics.

Multiple Choice 2

Tick the best answer.

N Tw 9 Ce i S 5 =

N Os w

Why did Philippe look like Louis?

7] They had the same mother but different fathers.
2] They were twin brothers,

[ They were cousins.

[] They had the same father but different mothers.

Apart from Aramis, who else knew about Philippe?
] Louis XIV.

[ Colber.

O D'Aragnan.

[J The Queen.

What did Aramis want to become!

] A duke.

] The King’s Chief Minister of Finance.
[C] The King of France.

[ The Pope in Rome.

What did Fouguer want from Arunis?
[C] He wanted o be king.

] He wanted more money.

] He wanted a howse at Versailles

[T} He wanted 1o be a duke.

70

5 What was the only difference between Philippe and Louis?

a [ Louis had a birthmark on his leg.

b [J Philippe had pale skin because he had spent years in prison.

¢ [ Louis had longer hair.

d [ Philippe was a liutle shorter.

6 Why did Aramis and Porthos go to Belle-lsle!?

a [ Because it was Fouquet's island and he said, Nobody will hurt
you there.'

b [ Because their friend Athas had a house there.

¢ [ Because they planned to go to England on a fishing boat.

d [ Because d'Artagnan told them, "You will be safe there.’

7 What happened to Porthos!?

a [ He was killed by falling rocks in the cave.

b [J He escaped to Spain and died in Madrid.

¢ [ He was put in prison with the man in the iron mack.
d [ He was allowed to live in the fore on Belle-lsle.

8 What happened to Aramis!

a [ He went to prison.

b [ He escaped to Spain.

¢ [ He was killed in the batele on Belle-lsle.
d [ He died in Blois.

L=

What happened o I Artagnan?

[J He became caprain of the King's Musketeers again and died
in hattle.

(] He left the King's Musketeers and teavelled to Spain.

¢ [ He was killed by the King,

d [0 He became governor of the prison on Sainte-Marguerite.

=

-

10 Who was the man in the iron mask?
a [ Fouguet.
b [J Louis XIV.
(] Aramis.
d [ Philippe.
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